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3MERAIA ARIREGIEDD! Il

T ASH SoIAA DIUoh fAISSDI

SMERAI AU FD D! Jat

S.N. Particulars Address Shares Amount Percentage (%)

1 Mahesh Kumar Jaju Morang District, Biratnagar, Ward No. 9 180,000 18,000,000 1.16%

2 Suresh Kumar Rathi Morang District, Biratnagar, Ward No. 12 180,000 18,000,000 1.16%

3 Call Mobility Pvt. Ltd. Kathmandu Metropolitancity, Putalisadak, 200,000 20,000,000 1.29%
Ward No. 31

4 Chandra Tandan Kathmandu Metropolitancity, Ward No. 14 200,000 20,000,000 1.29%

5 Vidya Devi Agrawal Sunsari District, Dharan, Ward No. 5 200,000 20,000,000 1.29%

6 Satish Kumar More Parsa District, Birgunj, Ward No. 7 270,000 27,000,000 1.75%

7 G. O. Automobiles Kathmandu Metropolitancity, Ganbahal, 300,000 30,000,000 1.94%
Ward No. 22

8 Diwakar Golcha Kathmandu Metropolitancity, Ward No. 22 300,000 30,000,000 1.94%

9 Akash Golchha Kathmandu Metropolitancity, Ward No. 22 360,000 36,000,000 2.33%

10 Deepak Kumar Mundara Morang District, Biratnagar, Ward No. 9 400,000 40,000,000 2.59%

11  [Sanjeev Saraff Janakpur District, Dhanusha, Ward No. 5 400,000 40,000,000 2.59%

12 Venkatesh Mundara Morang District, Biratnagar, Ward No. 9 400,000 40,000,000 2.59%

13 Nanda Kishor Sharma Morang District, Biratnagar, Ward No. 8 415,000 41,500,000 2.69%

14 Gaurav Sharda Morang District, Biratnagar, Ward No. 2 460,000 46,000,000 2.98%

15 Aditi Chokhani Kathmandu Municipality, Baluwatar, Ward 483,000 48,300,000 3.14%
No. 4

16 [City Investment Fund Pvt. Ltd. |[Kathmandu Metropolitancity, Kamladi, 600,000 60,000,000 3.89%

(eTererr wemifua A9 City Express {Ward No. 1
Investment Fund Pvt. Ltd.)

17  |Sirish Kumar Murarka Siraha District, Lahan, Ward No. 7 700,000 70,000,000 4.54%

18 Bodh Prasad Tripathi Chitwan District, Dareychowk, Ward No. 7 750,000 75,000,000 4.87%

19 NIC Asia Bank Kathmandu MetropolitanCity, Thapathali, 1,500,000f 150,000,000 9.74%
Ward No. 11

20 Nitesh Agrawal Sunsari District, Dharan, Ward No. 5 2,800,000( 280,000,000 18.18%

21 Usha Agrawal Kathmandu Metropolitancity, Ward No. 22| 2,800,000f 280,000,000 18.18%

Total Paid Up Capital| 13,898,000| 1,389,800,000 90.13%

ooy |




Corporate Social Responsibility

JyotiLife The Amazing Motor Rally

JyotilLife The Amazing Motor Rally 2020

JyotiLife Insurance Company Limited has title sponsored 7th Edition of The
Amazing Motor Rally 2020 as a part of CSR which was jointly organized by
Kathmandu Group of Hotels (KGH), Rotary Club of Bagmati. The rally was
organized to promote cancer awareness on World Cancer Day with a motto "I
am and | will create a world without Cancer”. In the same program Jyotilife in
association with KGH organized a Health Camp at Janajagriti High School,
Sarangkot and distributed Bags, Study materials and Sports equipment to the
students.
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Corporate Social Responsibility
COVID 19 Food Supply Support

Jyoti Life's support to the Chepang community during food
crisis created by Corona Virus Pandemic

Jyoti Life Insurance Company has distributed food supplies to the Chepang
community of Chilaune Kharka during the crisis caused by the Lockdown during
Corona Virus Pandemic.

oxy |
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Agency Awards Night




Events

Rajesh Hamal Signing
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Branch Opening

Regional Office Dhangadi Inauguration
Chairman of Beema Samiti, Mr. Chiranjibi Chapagain Inaugurated the Dhangadi
Regional Office of Jyotilife Insurance Company Limited,

o] |






Claim Handover
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SUBMH & CO' Charterad Accountants  Tel: 01-4487223, 4482239

House MNo. 189 P.O. Box: 129, Kathmandu
Tanka Prasad Marg E-mail: casubhash @ outlook.com
Oid Baneshwaor Halght

INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT Wathmandu, Nepal

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF [YOTI LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

s
Wi have audifed the nccompanying Financlal Statements of Jvoti Life Insurance Company Limited which comprises the Statement of
Firancial Position s at Ashad 31, 2076, Statement of Profit or Loss & Other Comprehensive ncome, Statement of Changes in Equity &
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended Ashad 31, 2076, and Notes to Financial Stetement incloding Summary of Sipnifcanl
Acoounting Polkces,

In aur opinion and bo the best of our information and acoording o the explanations given 1o us, the aforesaid Financial Stahersens glvea
i and fair view in conformity with Mepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs), of toe state of affairs of fyati Life Ensurance Company
Limiled e ot Ashad 31, 217, and e profit, cash Dows for the vear sndied an thal date,

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Nepal Standard on Auditing (NSAs) & applicable Liw, Oher
tesponsibilities under those Standards are further described m the Auditor's Responsibility for the audit of the Financlal Statements
section of pur report

We are independent of the Compary in accordance with the Code of Ethics lssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal
JCANE and wie have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities In agoordance with these requirements.

We belseve that the audit evidonoe cbtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our audit apinion on financial
slabeEmients.,

Qther Information
Management is respomsible for Other Information, Such tnformation constitutes the information mcluded on the Annual Foport but doas

nek Enclude the Financial Statements and our Awditor's Report thereen, The Anmual Report is expected to be made available to s after the
date.of Audlior's Report,

ur Opinicn or: the Financial Statoments does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurarce conclusion

thereor

In cemmection with our sudit of the financial Statements, our responsiiblity 8 to read other information and, in doing so, conzides whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements or oor knowledge obtained in awdil or otherwise s ppanrs to
be materially mizstated. |f based on the wark we have pedormed, we conclude that there 8 matesiol misstatemment of the. other
information, we are meuired te sepoel the fact. We have nothing to rapect in this regard,

Managements Responsibility for the Financial Statemants

Management is responsible for preparation and fir presentation of the Pinanclal Statements in accordance with the Mepal Finangial
Reporting Standards (WNFRSs) and for such internal control as management debermines is neceasary to ensble the preparation of Financial
Statemmwmnils that are [ree brom maokerial misstatement, whedher due 1o Fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is resporsible for assessing (15 ability to continue as o going comeemn, disclosing, as
applicabl, matters related o poing concemn and using the going comcern basis of scounting unless the management either intends o
liucldat of cedse operationd, or has no realistic altemnative but bo do s

Thoese charged with governance are responsible for oversesing the Company™s Finandial Reporting pracess,

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Cuir objectives age Lo dbinin ressonnble sssurance abaut whuther the Financlal Slalermenls as a whole are free from material misstatoment,
whether due to fraud or orror, and to ssee an Auditor's Report that incledes our opinian. Reasonable assurance ia s high level of
assurance but is not & guaranies thal an sudit conducted in accordance with N5As will always detect o malerial misstatement when it
exiss, Missatements qin arse from fraud or error and are consldered maberlal i, individually or in the aggregate, they anld reasonalsly
be expecied o influence the economic decsbon of ssers tken of U basia of these Financial Statements.
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As part of an audit in acoordance with NSAS, e exercize prohessional judpement and maindain professiomal skepticism throughout the
wudit, We alsa;

i Identsfy and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial Statements, whethes dug to lraud or error, design and perform
audit proceduses respansible to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is suffickent and appropriate to provide o basis for our opinion.
Tha risk of not detecting & material misstabement restilting from fraud i higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may mvolve
enlbusizm, forgery, Intenbonal omlasions, misrapresentation, of the override of inbernal comizols

U} Obtain an understanding of Internal Coatrol relevant to audit in order to design sudit procedures that ar approprinte in the
circumstarsies, but not for the purpess of expressing an Gpinion an the effectiveness of Company's Internal Control,

) Evaluate the appropriatenoss of accounting policies usid and the ressonablensss of aoooenting estimates and relaled desclomases mode
by the managesnont.

1¥) Conclude on the appropriatensss of management's use of the Rodng concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit svidence
ubtained, whether a material uncertainy sxists related bo events or conditiona that mary cast signlficant doubt o it abifity to continue 5 2
Foing concern, If we gonclude that a materisl urcerlainty exisis, we are required o draw altention in our Auditars Feport to the rolated
discliwures in the Finandial Stanements or, if such disclosunes are inadequate, bo mod ify our apinion,

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up b the date of our Audit Report. However, Fubure events or conditions Fray
citiuse the Company to cease (o continue as 8 going concer,

v) Evaluate the eversll presentation, struchire, and confent of thee FEmancial statements, including the disclosures, and whther the financial
stalernents jupresent the underlying transactions and evénts in a manner that achieves falr presentation,

Wa commumicate with those charged with governance regarding, ameong other matters, the planned seope and fiming of the awdit mnd
sigraficant audit findings, including any significant deficiendies in intermal control that we identify during our audii,

Wi also communicite with thoss charged with guvernande that we have compliod with relevant athical requirements regnrding
independence, and by communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonnbly bo thought to bedr on our
Ihdependence, and where apphicable, relatod eafemeards,

Begort on the Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements

Oin the basis of our examinabian and explanations given to us as per Companies Act, we would ke to repan that:

i) We have obtined information and explanations asked for, which, to the bast of our knowledge and bolief, were riecessary for Hhw
purpose al aur audli,

(i) Company has kept proper books of acoounts az mequired by law, so far as it appoars from the examination of those beaks of #ocoumts,
Lixi) Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit e Loss & Other Comprehimsive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and
Ataternent of Cash Flows have been prepared in accordance with the requiremends of the Compandes Act, 2063 ard are in agreement with
the books of scoount of tha Coempany,

i1v) During our examimation of the books of secount of the Cosmpany, wia have not come across the cases where the Board of CHrectors or
any member of there or any representative or amy affice balder or any employee of the Company has acted contrary o the provisians of
lavw or ciused loss or damage o the Cotnpany, and

{v) Wa have not come icross any froudlent activities in the books of accoants,

On the basis of our examination and explanations given b0 us aa per directives issued by Insurance Boasd bo Insurer conducting Life
Insurance Business, we would [ike to repart thak

(i Company's Life nsurance Fund and afher apecinl repeTVes are maimtained as required.

(4} As per Information provided to-us no other business thas upproved Life Insurance business was conducted by Company,

{1} Tix the best of information provided s, the company (5 able to meet 5 long torem liabilities.

SUBHASH & C(n
Chartered Agcountants

CA. & K. Jhunjhunwala
Partner

PMlage: Kathmanidu
Dabe: 2077 4402
LD 020 A0S P X Nk
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As at 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)
Amount in NPR

Particulars Note As at 31st Ashad 2076 As at 32nd Ashad 2075
ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 41 58,419,509 50,343,635
Intangible assets 4.2 3,766,091 1,049,347
Financial Investments 4.3 2,373,662,574 1,735,991,587
Loans at amortized cost 4.4 19,348,467 2,273,576
Other Financial assets at amortized cost 4.5 5,542,096 1,772,515
Deferred tax asset 4.25 82,606,547 1,103,131
Reinsurance Assets 49 1,735,258 -
Other assets 4.6 13,777,792 4,738,645
Current tax assets (net) 4.7 71,299,066 36,624,612
Cash and cash equivalents 4.8 118,234,355 61,095,005
Total assets 2,748,391,756 1,894,992,054
EQUITY

Share capital 4.13 1,540,000,000 1,540,000,000
Other reserves 4.14 82,664,308 1,160,892
Catastrophe reserve 32,013,768 13,324,615
Retained earnings 197,838,007 115,999,368
Total equity 1,852,516,082 1,670,484,876
LIABILITIES

Gross Insurance contract liabilities 49 715,470,698 153,119,395
Financial Liabilities 4.10 158,439,431 55,577,411
Other liabilities 4.11 11,169,754 12,341,356
Provisions 4.12 10,795,791 3,469,016
Total liabilities 895,875,674 224,507,178
Total liabilities and equity 2,748,391,756 1,894,992,054

The notes to financial statements as set out on schedules 1 to 6.5 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

Ravi Ranjan Sarraf Prakash Bikram Khatri Nanda Kishore Sharma CA S.K Jhunjhunwala
Head of Finance Chief Executive Officer Chairman Partner
SUBASH & CO.

Chartered Accountant

Akash Golchha Jayanta Kumar Agrawal Sharmila Maharjan
Director Director Director

Kathmandu, Nepal
Date:
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

Amount in NPR
Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars Note 31st Ashad 2076 32nd Ashad 2075
Gross earned premium 4.15 1,017,588,049 285,017,953
Premium ceded to reinsurance 4.15 (38,838,659) (10,798,631)
Net insurance premium revenue 978,749,390 274,219,322
Other incomes
Income from investments 4.16 229,545,496 204,111,408
Other income 417 10,745,368 3,841,672
Total income 1,219,040,254 482,172,402
Gross claims and benefits paid 4.18 5,768,707 500,000
Claims ceded to reinsurers 4.18 (4,203,199) (400,000)
Changes in net insurance liability 4.9 560,616,045 153,119,395
Net insurance benefits and claims 562,181,553 153,219,395
Agent Expenses 4.19 299,284,348 79,390,181
Regulatory Service fee 4.20 9,861,928 2,775,154
Employees benefit expenses 421 132,995,015 66,571,955
Impairment losses on financial assets 4.22 1,149,500 -
Depreciation & Amortization 4.23 9,286,549 3,833,806
Other operating expenses 4.24 103,753,569 56,665,621
Other expenses 556,330,910 209,236,717
Total expenses 1,118,512,463 362,456,112
Profit before income tax 100,527,791 119,716,290
Tax expense: (81,503,416) (1,107,025)
- Provision for income tax - -
- Deferred tax (income)/expense 4.25 (81,503,416) (1,107,025)
Profit for the year 182,031,207 120,823,316
Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Basic EPS (Rs) 5.6 12 8
Restated EPS (Rs) 5.6 - 8
Diluted EPS 12 8

The notes to financial statements as set out on schedules 1 to 6.5 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

Ravi Ranjan Sarraf Prakash Bikram Khatri Nanda Kishore Sharma CA S K Jhunjhunwala
Head of Finance Chief Executive Officer Chairman Partner
SUBASH & CO.

Chartered Accountant

Akash Golchha Jayanta Kumar Agrawal Sharmila Maharjan
Director Director Director
Kathmandu, Nepal

Date:
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited

Statement of Cash Flow

As at 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

Amount in NPR

. Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars
31st Ashad 2076 32nd Ashad 2075
Cash flow from operating activities
Net Profit Before Tax 100,527,791 119,716,290
Adjustment for Non Cash Items
Depreciation & Amortization 9,286,549 3,833,806
Changes in net insurance liability 560,616,045 153,119,395
Changes in Provisions 7,326,775 3,469,016
Adjustments for Items considered under other head
Income from investments (232,263,991) (204,654,184)
Interest Expenses 3,416,728 117,842
Adjustments for changes in working capital
(Increase)/decrese in current assets (12,808,728) 196,466
Increase/(Decrease) in current liabilities 101,690,419 66,873,955
Tax paid (34,674,454) (38,547,031)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 503,117,132 104,125,555
Cash flow from investing activities
Income from investments 232,263,991 204,654,184
(Increase)/Decrease in Fixed Assets (17,189,193) (53,921,219)
(Increase)/Decrease in Intangible Assets (2,889,975) (1,086,721)
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans at amortized cost (17,074,891) (2,273,576)
(Increase)/Decrease in Financial Investment (637,670,987) (205,991,587)
Net cash flow from investing activities(B) (442,561,055) (58,618,919)
Cash Flow on Financing Activities
Interest Expense (3,416,728) (117,842)
Dividend Paid - -
Isuue of Share Capital - -
Net cash flow from financing activities(C) (3,416,728) (117,842)
Change in Exchange rate in Cash and Bank Balances
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 57,139,349 45,388,794
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (D) 61,095,005 15,706,211
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (A+B+C+D) 118,234,355 61,095,005

Ravi Ranjan Sarraf Prakash Bikram Khatri Nanda Kishore Sharma
Head of Finance Chief Executive Officer Chairman

Akash Golchha Jayanta Kumar Agrawal Sharmila Maharjan
Director Director Director

Kathmandu, Nepal
Date:

As per our report of even date attached

CA S.K Jhunjhunwala
Partner

SUBASH & CO.
Chartered Accountant
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

Amount in NPR
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars
16 July 2019 16 July 2018
Profit for the year 182,031,207 120,823,316
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value - -
- Gains/(losses) on revaluation - -
- Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans -
- Income tax relating to above items -
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 182,031,207 120,823,316

The notes to financial statements as set out on schedules 1 to 6.5 form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

Ravi Ranjan Sarraf Prakash Bikram Khatri Nanda Kishore Sharma CA S K Jhunjhunwala
Head of Finance Chief Executive Officer Chairman Partner
SUBASH & CO.

Chartered Accountant

Akash Golchha Jayanta Kumar Agrawal Sharmila Maharjan
Director Director Director
Kathmandu, Nepal

Date:
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Significant Accounting Policy

Notes forming part of financial statements

For the year ended 31°t Ashad 2076

1. General Information

Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited (JLIC) is a public limited company incorporated
and domiciled in Nepal. The address of its registered office is Shanta Plaza, Gyaneshwor,
Kathmandu, Nepal. The Company was issued a license to operate Life Insurance
Business on 19/05/2074. The company underwrites life insurance risks. The company
currently has 42 branches and 61 sub branches in operation.

The financial statements for the year ended on 16 July 2019 (31 Ashad 2076) have been
approved by the Board of Directors on 02/06/2077. The management acknowledges the
responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with NFRS.

2. Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on accrual basis of
accounting in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as published
by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN).

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of
Profit or Loss and the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of
Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes to the Accounts.

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements were prepared on an accrual basis of accounting in accordance
with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) read along with the approved carve-
outs. Historical cost convention was used for financial statement recognition and
measurement except otherwise required by NFRS. Where, other method(s), other than
historical costs, such as fair value has been applied, and these have been disclosed in
accordance with the applicable reporting framework. The adoption of NFRS for
preparation of financial statements was brought in effect from fiscal year 2074/75.

The amounts of financial statements were presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) being
the functional currency of the Company. The figures were rounded to the nearest rupee
except where indicated otherwise.

2.2 Reporting period and approval of financial statements

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these financial statements. The Board of Directors is responsible for the
preparation and presentation of Financial Statements of the Company as per Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS). The approval of financial statements along with
notes to the financial statements have been adopted by the Board of Directors in its’ 68t
meeting held on 02/06/2077. The approved financial statements have been
recommended for approval by the shareholders in the 3rd annual general meeting of the
Company subsequent to receipt of regulatory approval from Beema Samiti.

2.3 Functional and Presentation Currency

T _______________________________________________________________________________________________|



Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Significant Accounting Policy

Notes forming part of financial statements

For the year ended 31°t Ashad 2076

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the
Company’s functional currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been
rounded to the nearest rupee except where indicated otherwise.

2.4 Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgements

The Company, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most
appropriately suit its circumstances and operating environment. Further, the Company
is required to make judgments in respect of items where the choice of specific policy,
accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could materially affect the financial
statements. This may later be determined that a different choice could have been more
appropriate.

The accounting policies have been included in the relevant notes for each item of the
financial statements and the effect and nature of the changes, if any, have been disclosed.

The NFRS requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the
assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as
reported in the financial statements. The Company applies estimates in preparing and
presenting the financial statements and such estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed periodically. The revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the period
in which the estimates are revised and are applied prospectively.

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant sections of
the notes wherever the estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of
changes of accounting estimates, if any.

2.5 Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Board of the
Company is satisfied that the Company has the resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future. In making this assessment, the Board of Directors have considered a
wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including future
projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

2.6 Changes in Accounting Policies

Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices
applied by the Company in preparing and presenting financial statements. The Company
is permitted to change an accounting policy only if the change is required by a standard
or interpretation; or results in the financial statements providing reliable and more
relevant information about the effects of transactions, other events or conditions on the
entity's financial position, financial performance, or cash flows. The Company uses the
same accounting policies throughout all periods presented in its NFRS financial
statements.

2.7 New Standards in issue but not yet effective

_______________________________________________________________________________________________________Jci



Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Significant Accounting Policy

Notes forming part of financial statements

For the year ended 31°* Ashad 2076

For the reporting of financial instruments, NAS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation,
NAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurements and NFRS 7 Financial
Instruments - Disclosures have been applied. NRFS 9 has been complied for the
classification of Financial Instruments.

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and
interpretations have been issued by IASB after the pronouncements of NFRS with
varying effective dates. Those become applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates them
within NFRS.

2.8 New Standards and Interpretations not adopted

The following amendments are not mandatory for 2019 and have not been early
adopted by the company. The Company is still currently assessing the detailed impact of
these amendments

2.8.1 IFRS17

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts was issued by the IASB on 18 May 2017 and has a
mandatory effective date of annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. It
supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contract. [FRS 17 with corresponding effective date has
not been endorsed by Accounting Standard Board (ASB) of Nepal yet. The management
is still assessing the potential impact on its financial statements, if [FRS 17 is applied in
future.

2.8.2 IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’-Impairment

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ was issued by the IASB in July 2014 and effective
internationally for the financials beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Accounting
Standard Board of Nepal endorsed NFRS 9 Financial Instruments with some exceptions,
mainly in the Impairment. Currently, Incurred Loss Model as specified in NAS 39 is used.
The requirement of IFRS 9 is Expected Credit Loss Model. The management is still
assessing the potential impact on its financial statements, if Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
model is introduced.

2.8.3 IFRS 16 ‘Leases’

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
internationally but is yet to be adopted by ASB Nepal. IFRS 16 is the new accounting
standard for leases and will replace IAS 17 ‘Leases’ and IFRIC 4 ‘Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease’. The new standard removes the distinction between
operating or finance leases for lessee accounting, resulting in all leases being treated as
finance leases. All leases will be recognised on the statement of financial position with
the optional exceptions for short-term leases with a lease term of less than 12 months
and leases of low-value assets (for example mobile phones or laptops). A lessee is
required to recognize a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying
leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. The
main reason for this change is that this approach will result in a more comparable
representation of a lessee’s assets and liabilities in relation to other companies and,
together with enhanced disclosures, will provide greater transparency of a lessee’s
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Significant Accounting Policy

Notes forming part of financial statements

For the year ended 31°* Ashad 2076

financial leverage and capital employed. The standard permits a lessee to choose either
a full retrospective or a modified retrospective transition approach.

2.9 Discounting

Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the
impact of the discounting is material.

2.10 Limitation of NFRS Implementation

Wherever the information is not adequately available, and/or it is impracticable to
develop, such exception to NFRS implementation has been noted and disclosed in
respective sections.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for the
following material items in the statement of financial position:

X financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value

X the liability for defined benefit obligations is recognized as the present value of the
defined benefit obligation less the net total of the plan assets.

X Insurance contract liabilities have been determined using Gross Premium Valuation
method, which applies present value principle of measurement.

3.2 Property and Equipment
a. Recognition and Measurement
The cost of an item of property and equipment shall be recognized as an asset, initially

recognized at cost, if, and only if:

X itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
entity; and

X the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment are initially stated at cost which includes purchase price,
non-refundable taxes and any other such costs which are directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the present location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management.

The Company adopts cost model for entire class of property and equipment. Neither class
of the property and equipment are measured at revaluation model nor is their fair value
measured at the reporting date. The items of property and equipment are measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is
capitalized as part of that equipment.

__________________________________________________________________________________________________KL



Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Significant Accounting Policy

Notes forming part of financial statements

For the year ended 31°t Ashad 2076

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits
from the expenditure will flow to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep
the assets in working condition are expensed as incurred. Any gain or loss on disposal of
an item of property and equipment (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds
from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognized within other income in
profit or loss.

Assets with a value of less than NPR 5,000 are charged off to revenue irrespective of their
useful life in the year of purchase.
b. Depreciation

Depreciation on fixed assets is calculated using the straight- line method over their
estimated useful life as per management judgement as follows:

Group Useful Life (In Years)
Furniture and Fixtures (Heavy) 10 Years
Furniture and Fixtures (Light) 5 Years
Leasehold Assets 15 Years
Leasehold Assets (Branch) 10 Years
Office Equipment (Heavy) 5 Years
Office Equipment (Light) 2 Years
Other assets 5 Years
Vehicle 7 Years
C. Derecognition

The depreciable amount of Property and Equipment shall be derecognized on disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss
arising from the de-recognition of an item of property and equipment shall be included in
profit or loss when the item is derecognized (unless on a sale & lease back). The gain
shall not be classified as revenue. Depreciation method, useful lives and residual value
are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted, if any.

3.3 Intangible Assets / Goodwill
Goodwill
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets

acquired in Business Combination is recognized as goodwill. Following initial
recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Significant Accounting Policy

Notes forming part of financial statements

For the year ended 31°* Ashad 2076

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently, if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Acquired Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at fair value, which reflects market expectations
of the probability that the future economic benefits embodied in the asset will flow to
the Company and are amortized on the basis of their expected useful lives.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software. Costs associated with the development of
software are capitalized where it is probable that it will generate future economic
benefits in excess of its cost. Computer software costs are amortized on the basis of
expected useful life. Costs associated with maintaining software are recognized as an
expense as incurred.

At each reporting date, these assets are assessed for indicators of impairment. In the
event that an asset’s carrying amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable
amount, the asset is written down immediately.

Software is amortised on a straight-line basis in profit or loss over its estimated useful
life, from the date that it is available for use. The estimated useful life of software for the
current and comparative periods is 10 years.

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted if appropriate.

3.4 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

A. Recognition

The Company initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement
of financial position when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. The Company initially recognizes loans and advances,
deposits on the date that they are originated which is the date that the Company
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Investments in equity
instruments, bonds, debenture, are recognized on trade date at which the Company
commits to purchase/ acquire the financial assets. Regular way purchase and sale of
financial assets are recognized on trade date at which the Company commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

B. Classification

L. Financial Assets

The Company classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized
cost or fair value on the basis of the Company’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Significant Accounting Policy

Notes forming part of financial statements

For the year ended 31°* Ashad 2076

The two classes of financial assets are as follows;

i. Financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Company classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the
following conditions are met:

X The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows and

X The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

ii. Financial asset measured at fair value

Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value.
Financial assets measured at fair value are further classified into two categories as
below:

X Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are
held for trading or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial
recognition, transaction cost is directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized
in profit or loss as incurred. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and
changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

X Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial
recognition, the Company makes an irrevocable election that the subsequent
changes in fair value of the instrument is to be recognized in other comprehensive
income are classified as financial assets at fair value though other comprehensive
income. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair
value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

II. Financial Liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan
commitments, as follows;

X Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss if they are held
for trading or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial
recognition, transaction costs are directly attributable to the acquisition are
recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent changes in fair
value is recognized at profit or loss
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Significant Accounting Policy

Notes forming part of financial statements

For the year ended 31°t Ashad 2076

X Financial Liabilities measured at amortized cost

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are
classified as subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate

method.
C. Measurement
i. Initial Measurement

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus or minus, for
an item not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. Transaction cost in relation to financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in Statement of Profit or
Loss.

ii. Subsequent Measurement

A financial asset or financial liability is subsequently measured either at fair value or at
amortized cost based on the classification of the financial asset or liability. Financial
asset or liability classified as measured at amortized cost is subsequently measured at
amortized cost using effective interest rate method.

The amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the
financial asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest
method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and
minus any reduction for impairment or uncollectibility.

Financial assets classified at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value. The
subsequent changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss whereas of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognized in other comprehensive income.

3.4.1 Derecognition

Derecognition of Financial Assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the
asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset transferred) and the
consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed) shall be recognized in profit and loss account.
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Significant Accounting Policy

Notes forming part of financial statements

For the year ended 31°t Ashad 2076

In transactions in which the Company neither retains nor transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset,
the Company continues to recognize the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value of
the transferred asset.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or canceled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the
carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognized
in Statement of Profit or Loss.

3.4.2 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The company has not offset any of its financial assets with financial liabilities as at 16
July 2019. Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position only when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.4.3 Determination of Fair Value

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled,
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction on the
measurement date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk

The fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active
markets or quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and
financial instruments valued using models where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where at least one input, which could have a significant
effect on the instrument’s valuation, is not based on observable market data.

When available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted
prices in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available and represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the
transaction price - i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. However, in
some cases, the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition may be
different to its transaction price. If such fair value is evidenced by comparison with
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other observable current market transactions in the same instrument (without
modification) or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from
observable markets, then the difference is recognized in profit or loss on initial
recognition of the instrument. In other cases, the difference is not recognized in profit or
loss immediately but is recognized over the life of the instrument on an appropriate
basis or when the instrument is redeemed, transferred or sold, or the fair value becomes
observable.

All unquoted equity investments are recorded at book value per share.

3.4.4 Impairment

At each reporting date the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an
asset may have been impaired. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is
determined. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events occurring after the initial recognition of the asset (a loss event), and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The Company considers the following factors in assessing objective evidence of
impairment:

X Whether the counterparty is in default of principal or interest payments.

X When a counterparty files for bankruptcy and this would avoid or delay discharge of
its obligation.

X Where the Company initiates legal recourse of recovery in respect of a credit
obligation of the counterpart.

X Where the Company consents to a restructuring of the obligation, resulting in a
diminished financial obligation, demonstrated by a material forgiveness of debt or
postponement of scheduled payments.

X Where there is observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows of a group of financial assets, although the decrease
cannot yet be identified with specific individual financial assets.

The Company considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and held-to-
maturity investment securities at both a specific asset and collective level. All individually
significant loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment securities are assessed
for specific impairment. Those found not to be specifically impaired are then collectively
assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified.

Loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment securities that are not individually
significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and
advances and held-to-maturity investment securities with similar risk characteristics.
Impairment test is done on annual basis for trade receivables and other financial assets
based on the internal and external indication observed.

Impairment losses on assets measured at amortised cost
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Financial assets carried at amortised cost (such as amounts due from Company, loans
and advances to customers as well as held-to-maturity investments is impaired, and
impairment losses are recognized, only if there is objective evidence as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset. The amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the deemed
recoverable value of loan.

3.5 Income Tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

a. Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or recoverable on the taxable income or loss for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax payable also
includes any tax liability arising from the declaration of dividends.

b. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used
for taxation purposes. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rate applicable to the
Company as at the reporting date which is expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized where it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

3.6 Cash and Cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with B/FIs, and highly liquid
financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition
dates that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used
by the Company in the management of its short-term commitments. Cash and cash
equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the statement of financial position.

3.7 Share Capital and Reserves

The Company classifies capital instruments as financial liabilities or equity instruments
in accordance with the substance of the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is
defined as residual interest in total assets of the Company after deducting all its
liabilities. Common shares are classified as equity of the Company and distributions
thereon are presented in statement of changes in equity.
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Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of an equity instrument are deducted
from the initial measurement of the equity instruments considering the tax benefits
achieved thereon.

The reserves include retained earnings and other statutory reserves such as general
reserve, catastrophe reserve, regulatory reserve etc.

Regulatory reserve: It includes any amount derived as result of NFRS convergence
with effect in retained earning computed as per the instructions of Beema Samiti.

Catastrophe Reserve: The company has regulatory requirement to set aside 10% of
Net Profit or loss as Catastrophe Reserve. Such reserve are not distributable and has
been created to meet huge claims in the event of catastrophe.

Fair Value Reserve: The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the
fair value of financial assets that are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) and the changes in fair value is recognized in other
comprehensive income, until the assets are derecognized. The cumulative amount of
changes in fair value of those financial assets shall be presented under this account head.

Actuarial Gain/Losses: Actuarial Gains and Losses are the changes in the present value
of the defined benefit obligation on gratuity as a result of change in actuarial
assumptions and experience adjustments.

3.8 Insurance Contracts Liabilities

Life insurance liabilities are recognised when contracts are entered into and premiums
are charged. These liabilities are measured using the Gross Premium Method, which is
also prescribed by the Beema Samiti. Under gross premium method, future cash flows
from premium receivable, commission payable, expected future expenses and all types
of benefit payouts are discounted to present value.

At each reporting date, an assessment is made of whether the recognised life insurance
liabilities, are adequate by using an existing liability adequacy test performed in
accordance with NFRS 4. The liability value is adjusted to the extent that it is insufficient
to meet expected future benefits and expenses. In performing the adequacy test, current
best estimates of future contractual cash flows, including related cash flows such as
claims handling and policy administration expenses, policyholder options and
guarantees, as well as investment income from assets backing such liabilities, are used.

3.9 Receivables and payables related to insurance contracts

Receivables and payables are recognized when due. These include amounts due to and
from agents, brokers and insurance contract holders. If there is objective evidence that
the insurance receivable is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the
insurance receivable accordingly and recognizes that impairment loss in profit or loss.
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The Company gathers the objective evidence that an insurance receivable is impaired
using the same process adopted for loans and receivables.

Provision for outstanding claims are recognized based on the estimated cost of all claims
incurred but not settled at the statement of financial position date.

3.10 Provisions

The Company recognizes a provision if, as a result of past event, the Company has a
present constructive or legal obligation that can be reliably measured and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation.

A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation that may but probably will not require an outflow of resources. When
there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of
outflow of resources is remote, no provision is made but only disclosure of such liability
is made.

A provision for onerous contract is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived
by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its
obligation under the contract.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to
settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. Contingent assets are not recognized in
the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is
virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related
income are recognized in the period in which the change occurs.

3.11 Revenue

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits during the period arising from the
course of the ordinary activities of an entity when those inflows result in increases in
equity, other than increases relating to contributions from equity participants. Revenue
is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is not recognized during
the period in which its recoverability of income is not probable.

i. Premium Income

Premium income is recognised as soon as the amount of the premium can be reliably
measured. First premium is recognised from inception date and subsequent premium is
recognised when it is due. Premiums are shown before deduction of commission. Gross
premium received and premium paid on reinsurance ceded are disclosed separately.

Premiums are shown before deduction of commission and are gross of any taxes or
duties levied on premium.

ii. Fees & Commission
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Fees and commissions are recognized on an accrual basis when the service has been
provided or significant act performed whenever the benefit exceeds cost in determining
such value. Whenever, the cost of recognizing fees and commissions on an accrual basis
exceeds the benefit in determining such value, the fees and commissions are charged off
during the year.

iii. Dividend Income

Dividend income are recognized when right to receive such dividend is established.
Usually this is the ex-dividend date for equity securities. Dividends are presented in net
trading income, net income from other financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss or other revenue based on the underlying classification of the equity
investment.

3.12 Claims and benefits paid

Benefits are recorded as an expense when they are incurred. Claims arising on maturing
policies are recognized when the claim becomes due for payment. Death claims are
accounted for on notification. Surrenders are accounted for on payment.

A liability for contractual benefits that are expected to be incurred in the future is
recorded when the premiums are recognized. The liability is determined as the sum of
the expected discounted value of the benefit payments and the future administration
expenses that are directly related to the contract, less the expected discounted value of
the theoretical premiums that would be required to meet the benefits and
administration expenses based on the valuation assumptions used (the valuation
premiums). The liability is based on assumptions as to mortality, persistence
maintenance expenses and investment income that are established at the time the
contract is issued. A margin for adverse deviations is included in the assumptions.

Where insurance contracts have a single premium or a limited number of premium
payments due over a significantly shorter period than the period during which benefits
are provided, the entire premium is recognized on cash basis. The excess of the
premiums payable over the valuation premiums is deferred and recognized as income in
line with the decrease of unexpired insurance risk of the contracts in-force or, for
annuities in force, in line with the decrease of the amount of future benefits expected to
be paid. The liabilities are recalculated at each reporting date using the assumptions
established at inception of the contracts.

3.13 Employees Benefits

a. Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is also recognized for the amount
expected to be paid under bonus required by the Bonus Act, 2030 to pay the amount as a
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result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated
reliably under short term employee benefits.

Short-term employee benefits include all the following items (if payable within 12
months after the end of the reporting period):

X wages, salaries and social security contributions,
X paid annual leave and paid sick leave,
X profit-sharing and bonuses and
X non-monetary benefits
b. Post-Employment Benefits

Post-employment benefit plan includes the followings;
i. Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation
to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are
recognized as personnel expenses in profit or loss in the periods during which related
services are rendered.

Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due more than 12 months after the
end of the reporting period in which the employees render the service are discounted to
their present value.

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a
defined contribution plan, in which both the employee and the Company contribute
monthly at a pre-determined rate of 10% of the basic salary. The Company does not
assume any future liability for provident fund benefits other than its annual contribution.

ii. Defined Benefit plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined
contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is
calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. That
benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs
and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted.

The Company recognizes all actuarial gains and losses net of deferred tax arising from
defined benefit plans immediately in other comprehensive income and all expenses
related to defined benefit plans in employee benefit expense in profit or loss.

The Company recognizes gains and losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined

benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs. The gain or loss on curtailment
or settlement comprises any resulting change in the fair value of plan assets, any change
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in the present value of the defined benefit obligation, any related actuarial gains and
losses and any past service cost that had not previously been recognised.

C. Other long term benefits

Other long-term employee benefits are all employee benefits other than short-term
employee benefits, post-employment benefits and termination benefits. Other long term
benefit includes long term paid absences such home leave and sick leave. The company
recognizes all actuarial gain and losses in statement of profit or loss.

For other long-term employee benefits, an entity shall recognize the net total of the
following amounts in profit or loss,

- service cost
- interest cost
- re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability including actuarial gains or losses

d. Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the Company is demonstrably
committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either
terminate employment before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination
benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination
benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognised as an expense if the Company has
made an offer of voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and
the number of acceptances can be estimated reliably. If benefits are payable more than
12 months after the reporting date, then they are discounted to their present value.

3.14 Leases

Lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognized as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term unless either:

(a) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s
benefit even if the payments to the lessors are not on that basis; or

(b) The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If payments
to the lessor vary because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is
not met.

Majority of lease agreements entered by the Company are with the clause of normal
increment of 5%-10% p.a. which the management assumes are in line with the lessor’s
expected inflationary cost increases. In the FY 2075-76, the company has applied
straight line basis of accounting to account for rentals payable under operating leases.
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The company has reinstated the amount of lease as a result of application of straight line
recognition criteria as prescribed by NFRS. Reinstated figures are stated below:

Year Old Reporting New Reporting | Net Impact
2074/75 13,460,230 17,199,685 3,739,455

Lease Commitment

Particulars Current Previous
Year Year

Operating lease commitments
Future Minimum lease payment under non - cancellable
operating lease, where the insurance company is lessee
Not Later than 1 year 32,468,343 28,723,968
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 125,408,687 | 127,778,916
Later than 5 Years 148,499,303 | 178,597,416

Total 306,376,333 | 335,100,301

3.15 Foreign Currency Translation
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR).

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate
of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of
exchange at the statement of financial position date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions,
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at historical exchange rates if held at
historical cost, or year-end exchange rates if held at fair value, and the resulting foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognized in either the statement of profit or loss or
shareholders’ equity depending on the treatment of the gain or loss on the asset or
liability.

3.16 Earnings per share including diluted earnings

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary
shares. The basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary
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shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

3.17 Segment Reporting

Under NFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’, the Company determines and presents operating
segments based on different types of insurance contracts issued by the company.

Based on the operating segments identified, the Company has classified and disclosed
segmental information separately. The businesses are segmented into Term Policy,
Endowment & whole life policy, Endowment & Money back policy, Endowment Policy.
There are no reportable geographical segments, since all business is written in Nepal.
The allocation and apportionment of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities to specific
segments is done in the following manner, which is applied on a consistent basis.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities that are directly identifiable to the segment are
allocated on actual basis;

Other revenue, expenses (including depreciation and amortization), assets and liabilities

that are not directly identifiable to a segment are apportioned based of weightage as
prescribed by the Beema Samiti.
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

Amount in NPR
4.2 Intangible assets

Particulars Amount
Cost or deemed cost
As at 31st Ashad 2074 -
Additions 1,086,721
Disposals or classified as held for sale -
As at 32nd Ashad 2075 1,086,721
Additions 2,889,975
Write off during the year -
Disposals or classified as held for sale -
As at 31st Ashad 2076 3,976,696
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
As at 31st Ashad 2074 -
Additions 37,374
Disposals or classified as held for sale -
As at 32nd Ashad 2075 37,374
Additions 173,231
Write off during the year -
Disposals or classified as held for sale -
As at 31st Ashad 2076 210,605
Carrying Amount
As at 31st Ashad 2076 3,766,091
As at 32nd Ashad 2075 1,049,347
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

4.3 Financial Investments

Amount in NPR

As at As at
Particulars 31st Ashad 2076 32nd Ashad 2075
Financial Investments at FVTOCI 75,200,000 37,500,000
Financial Investments at amortized cost 2,298,462,574 1,698,491,587
Total Financial Investments 2,373,662,574 1,735,991,587

4.3.1 Financial Investments at FVTOCI
Amount in NPR

As at As at
Particulars 31st Ashad 2076 32nd Ashad 2075
Corporate Equity shares:
Quoted - -
Unquoted 75,200,000 37,500,000
Mutual funds:
Quoted - -
Unquoted - -
Allowance for impairment loss - -
Total 75,200,000 37,500,000

4.3.2 Financial Investments at amortized cost
Amount in NPR

As at As at
Particulars 31st Ashad 2076 32nd Ashad 2075
Fixed deposits (Refer note below) 2,229,994,574 1,698,491,587
Corporate debentures 68,468,000 -
Government securities - -
Total 2,298,462,574 1,698,491,587

Fixed deposits held by the company amounting to NRS. 200 Million have been earmarked to Beema Samiti

Accordingly, the original physical certificates of Fixed Deposits are under the custody of Beema Samiti.
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4.4

4.5

Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

Loans at amortized cost

Amount in NPR
Particul As at As at
articulars
31st Ashad 2076 32nd Ashad 2075
Loans on life insurance Policies 3,049,954 -
Loans to agents 13,040,077 1,542,494
Loans to employees 4,407,935 731,082
Less: Allowance for impairment loss (1,149,500) -
Total 19,348,467 2,273,576
Other Financial assets at amortized cost
Amount in NPR
Particul As at As at
articulars
31st Ashad 2076 32nd Ashad 2075
Receivables from other Insurers 3,375,956
Deposits 2,166,140 1,772,515
Trade receivables -
Total 5,542,096 1,772,515

Deposit includes rent deposit amounting to NRS. 20.59 lakhs
Recievables from other insurer include amount of FE permium receivable from FE pool
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

4.6 Other Assets Amount in NPR
As at As at
Particulars 31st Ashad 2076 32nd Ashad 2075
Advances to employees 446,094 353,416
Other Advance 6,992,732 4,184,311
Prepaid Staff Benefit 3,800,290 200,918
Prepaid Agent Loan 2,538,676 -
Total 13,777,792 4,738,645
Prepaid Staff Benefit is the amount of prepayment on fair value of staff loan.
Prepaid Agent Loan is the amount of prepayment on fair value of agent loan.
4.7 Current tax assets (net)
Amount in NPR
As at As at
Particulars 31st Ashad 2076 32nd Ashad 2075
Current year income tax assets 34,674,454 36,624,612
Tax assets of prior periods 36,624,612
Current tax assets 71,299,066 36,624,612
Current year income tax liabilities - -
Tax liabilities of prior periods - -
Current tax liabilities
Net current tax assets/(liabilities) 71,299,066 36,624,612
4.8 Cash and cash equivalents
Amount in NPR
As at As at
Particulars 31st Ashad 2076 32nd Ashad 2075
Cash & cheque balance - -
Balance with commercial banks (Non-Interest bearing) 101,468,326 51,535,908
Balance with development banks (Non-Interest bearing) 13,475,644 2,150,242
Balance with financial institutions (Non-Interest bearing) 270,408 -
Call Deposit 3,019,977 7,408,855
Total 118,234,355 61,095,005

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________RX
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4.10

4.11

412

Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

Financial Liabilities Amount in NPR
. As at 31st Ashad As at 32nd
Particulars
2076 Ashad 2075
Trade payables 6,337,092 7,222,656
Audit fee Payable 731,125 284,325
Withholding Tax payables 8,775,896 5,620,968
Service charge payables 10,175,882 2,547,351
Employee Bonus Payables 12,341,356 -
Salary Payable 1,151,914 3,840,113
VAT Payable 84,087
PF Payable 6,825 289,708
Payables to agent 86,960,621 26,748,069
Payable for Agent License 311,045 557,190
Payables to Reinsurer 17,932,494 4,292,212
Rent Payable 10,354,817 3,799,788
Payable to Staff 3,276,277 375,031
158,439,431 55,577,411

Service charge is payable to Beema Samiti at 1% of all the premiums collected during the year.
Payable to re-insurers include amount payable to Nepal Reinsurance Company Limited and

Hannover Re.

Other Liabilities Amount in NPR
. As at 31st Ashad As at 32nd
Particulars
2076 Ashad 2075
Provision for staff bonus 11,169,754 12,341,356
Total 11,169,754 12,341,356
Provision for staff bonus is calculated at 10% of net profit before bonus.
Provision Amount in NPR
. As at 31st Ashad As at 32nd
Particulars
2076 Ashad 2075
Provision for staff gratuity 5,775,636 1,929,255
Provision for leave encashment 5,020,155 1,539,761
Total 10,795,791 3,469,016

Refer Note 5.4 for details on acturial valuation of leave encashment.
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

4.13.2  Shareholders Holding 1% or more of the total share capital

As at 31st Ashad 2076 As at 32nd Ashad 2075
Shareholder Category o . o .
%o of holding %o of holding
Mahesh Kumar Jaju 1.17 1.17
Suresh Kumar Raathi 1.17 1.17
Chandra Tandon 1.30 1.30
Bidhya Devi Agrawal 1.30 1.30
Call Mobility Pvt Ltd 1.30 1.30
Satish Kumar Morey 1.75 1.75
G.O Automobiles Pvt Ltd 1.95 1.95
Diwakar Golcha 1.95 1.95
Akash Golcha 2.34 2.34
Sanjeev Sarraf 2.60 2.60
Venkatesh Mundra 2.60 2.60
Deepak Kumar Mundra 2.60 2.60
Nanda Kishore Sharma 2.69 2.69
Gaurab Sharada 2.99 2.99
Aditi Chokhani 3.14 3.14
Citi Investment Fund Pvt Ltd 3.90 3.90
Sirish Kumar Murarka 4.55 4.55
Bodh Prasad Tripathi 4.87 4.87
Nic Asia Bank Limited 9.74 9.74
Nitesh Agrawal 18.18 18.18
Usha Agrawal 18.18 18.18
90.25 90.25
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4.13.3

4.13.4

4.14

Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

Equity Share Capital - over the years movements Amount in NPR
Paid up share capital of the Company has moved over the years as follows:

. As at 32nd Ashad
Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2076
2075
Opening Share Capital 1,540,000,000 1,540,000,000
Add: Issuance of Right Share - -
Add: Issuance of Bonus Share - -
Add: Calls in advance - -
Closing Share capital 1,540,000,000 1,540,000,000

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 100 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company after distribution of preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders.

Other reserves

. As at 32nd Ashad

Particulars As at 31st Ashad 2076
2075

DTA Reserve 82,606,547 1,103,131
Share Premium
Regulatory Reserve 57,761 57,761
Total 82,664,308 1,160,892
DTA Reserve

The company sets aside amount equal to Deferred Tax Assets as DTA Reserve.

Catastrophe Reserve:

The company has regulatory requirement to set aside 10% of Net Profit or loss as Catastrophe Reserve. Such reserve are not distributable
and has been created to meet huge claims in the event of catastrophe

Regulatory Reserve

Regulatory reserves includes any amount derived as result of NFRS conversion with effect in retained earning computed as per Directive
issued by the Beema Samiti
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4.16

4.17

Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

Income from investments Amount in NPR
Particulars Year Ended 31st Year Ended 32nd
Ashad 2076 Ashad 2075
Interest income from Bank deposits (fixed deposits) 229,214,206 204,111,408
Interest income from corporate debentures 331,290 -
Total 229,545,496 204,111,408
Other Incomes Amount in NPR
. Year Ended 31st Year Ended 32nd
Particulars
Ashad 2076 Ashad 2075
Premium late fee 487,835 1,529
Income from loan against incurance policy 39,447 -
Income from loans and advances (Other than policy loan) 1,504,002 11,263
Interest income from Bank deposits (call deposits) 1,175,046 531,513
Reinsurer Discount/ Commission income 7,443,436 3,296,078
Other incomes 95,601 1,289
Total 10,745,368 3,841,672
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

419  Agent expenses Amount in NPR
Particul Year Ended 31st Year Ended 32nd
articulars Ashad 2076 Ashad 2075
Agent commission 200,950,344 61,096,899
Agent Training Expenses 3,725,276 776,126
Other Agent Expenses 93,923,869 17,517,156
Agent Interest Expenses 684,858
Total 299,284,348 79,390,181
420 Regulatory service fees Amount in NPR
Particul Year Ended 31st Year Ended 32nd
articulars Ashad 2076 Ashad 2075
Gross service fees 10,175,880 2,850,180
Less: Share of reinsurers (313,952) (75,026)
Total 9,861,928 2,775,154

Regulatory Service Fee is payable to Beema Samiti at the rate of 1% on gross premium received. Similarly, 1% of reinsuarnce
ceded is recovered from reinsurers.

4.20.1 Policy-wise regulatory service fees

Year Ended 31st Ashad 2076

Particulars

Gross Reinsurance Net
Participating contracts
Endowment policy 5,682,332 137,696 5,544,635
Money back policy 1,798,208 60,458 1,737,750
Endowment and whole life policy 2,485,247 87,354 2,397,893
Non Participating contracts -
Foreign employment term policy 118,129 - 118,129
Term policy 91,965 28,443 63,521
Total 10,175,880 313,952 9,861,928

. Year Ended 32nd Ashad 2075

Particulars -

Gross Reinsurance Net
Participating contracts
Endowment policy 1,636,902 37,394 1,599,508
Money back policy 466,715 13,365 453,350
Endowment and whole life policy 735,845 21,317 714,528
Non Participating contracts -
Foreign employment term policy - - -
Term policy 10,718 2,950 7,768
Total 2,850,180 75,026 2,775,154

ooy |



4.21 Employee benefit expenses

4.23

Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

Amount in NPR

. Year Ended 31st Year Ended 32nd
Particulars
Ashad 2076 Ashad 2075
Salary 50,361,982 25,177,331
Allowance 37,149,344 19,072,944
Dashain Allowance 5,311,903 1,275,333
Provident Fund 5,042,064 2,362,840
Training 6,370,057 833,555
Insurance 1,211,368 7,861
Pension & Gratuity 4,189,269 1,929,255
Leave Encashment 5,656,632 2,161,311
Performance bonus 5,404,470 1,029,360
Overtime - 9,100
Staff Refrshment 1,065,503 371,708
Provision For Staff Bonus 11,169,754 12,341,356
Staff Personnel expenses 62,669 -
Total 132,995,015 66,571,955
For actuarial valuation details of leave encashment refer Note 5.4
4.22 Impairment losses on financial assets Amount in NPR
Year Ended 31st Year Ended 32nd
Particulars Ashad 2076 Ashad 2075
Write back of impairment loss on financial investments
Impairment losses on Financial investments 1,149,500
Impairment losses on loans & advances
Total 1,149,500 -
Depreciation and amortization Amount in NPR
. Year Ended 31st Year Ended 32nd
Particulars
Ashad 2076 Ashad 2075
Depreciation of PPE 9,113,318 3,796,432
Amortization of Intangible assets 173,231 37,374
Total 9,286,549 3,833,806

Refer Note 4.1 and 4.2 for detail of depreciation charged on each class of assets.

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________Nil




Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

4.24  Other operating expenses Amount in NPR
Year Ended 31st Year Ended 32nd
Particulars
Ashad 2076 Ashad 2075
House Rent 28,622,282 17,199,685
Electricity & Water 2,354,040 1,001,606
Repair and maintenance expenses:
- Vehicle 14,924 2,987
- Office Equipment 9,003 3,150
- Others 73,339 -
Communications 9,194,421 3,572,079
Printing & Stationary 6,674,810 3,789,025
Consumables 2,191,481 2,509,578
Transportation 4,132,672 1,608,553
Travelling & Dailly Allowance:
- Domestic 4,946,499 2,771,996
- International 822,137 -
Insurance Premium Expenses 182,570 32,547
Security Expenses 840,720 -
Legal & Consultancy Fees 157,838 34,818
Books & Periodicals 60,615 24,205
Advertisement Expenses 15,947,321 12,040,043
Business Promotion Expenses 625,830 646,430
Entertainment & Hospitality 53,909 372,507
Charity & Donations 35,000 -
Board meeting expenses:
- Meeting Allowances 227,000 283,500
- Others - -
Other committee meeting expenses:
- Meeting Allowances 336,000 162,000
- Others - -
Annual General Meeting Expenses - 80,154
Acturial Service Fees 1,996,684 2,958,143
Acturial Expenses 33,900 -
Statutory Audit Fee 395,500 254,250
Statutory Audit Expenses 38,600 -
Internal Audit Fee 400,528 135,600
Other Audit Expenses - 185,931
Bank Charges & Commissions 115,197 26,202
Fees & Other Taxes 56,650 50,800
Other Office Expenses 9,834,873 3,430,801
Interest Expenses 3,416,728 117,842
Stamp Expenses 315,680 -
Other rent expenses 3,141,702 525,219
Service and Training cost 1,849,657 1,432,460
Postage & Courier 1,652,398 536,241
Foreign Employement Pool Expenses 582,525 -
Medical fee 2,420,534 877,269
Total 103,753,569 56,665,621
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4.25

Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) Amount in NPR
Deferred Tax on Restatement (2074-75)

Deferred Tax recognized in PL

Particulars Accounting Base Tax base Assets/(Liabilities)
Carried forward loss for Tax purpose 722,327 722,327
Employee Benefits - Gratuity and Leave 3,469,016 3,469,016
Property, Plant and Equipment 51,392,982 47,874,710 (3,518,272)
Rent Payable 3,739,455 3,739,455
Total 4,412,526
Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) @ 25% 1,103,131
Reversal during the year 3,894
Deferred Tax Already In Books -
Total Deferred Tax recognized in P & L 1,107,025
Deferred Tax recognized in OCI

Particulars Accounting Base Tax base (Assets)/ Liabilities
Investment Gain - -
Acturial Gains - Gratuity -
Acturial Gains and Losses - Leave -
Total -
Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) @ 30% -
Deferred Tax Already In Books -
Total Deferred Tax -
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) for FY 2074-75 1,107,025
Deferred Tax on Restatement (2075-76)

Deferred Tax recognized in PL

Particulars Accounting Base Tax base Assets/(Liabilities)
Investment 2,374,087,977 2,374,087,977 -
Loan 16,190,650 23,679,116 7,488,466
Property, Plant and Equipment 62,185,600 56,870,026 (5,315,574)
Gratuity Provision 5,775,636 5,775,636
Leave Provision 5,020,155 5,020,155
Loss Carryforward for Tax Purpose 310,942,165
Rent Payable 6,515,341 - 6,515,341
Total 330,426,188
Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) @ 25% 82,606,547
Deferred Tax Already In Books 1,103,131
Total Deferred Tax to be recognized in PL 81,503,416
Deferred Tax recognized in OCI

Particulars Accounting Base Tax base (Assets)/ Liabilities
Investment Gain

Acturial Gains - Gratuity

Acturial Gains and Losses - Leave

Total -
Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) @ 25% -
Deferred Tax Already In Books -
Total Deferred Tax -
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) for FY 2075-76 82,606,547
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

5 Disclosures and additional information
5.1 Risk Management

5.1.1 Insurance Risk

The principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments or the timing thereof, may
differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims and actual benefits paid . Therefore, the objective
of the Company is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities.

The risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and geographical areas. The variability of
risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategy guidelines, as well as the use of reinsurance
arrangements.

Various lite insurance products are ottered by the Company which are primarily categorised into lerm Policy, Endowment Policy, Money
Back Policy and Endowment cum Whole life policy. Products other than Term Policy have been designed to reduce the market and credit
risks. Under Endowment, Money Back and Endowment cum whole life policy, risks are largely passed on to the policyholder. Partly, there
is risk to the company in its income if the fund values decreases. Insurance products carry mortality risk and also market risk to the extent
that there are euarantees built into the product desien.

The main risks that the Company is exposed at the time of designing products are as follows

Type of Risks Nature

Mortality risk
Investment return risk

Risk of loss arising due to policyholders’ death experience being different from expected

Risk of loss arising from actual returns being different from expected

. . . Risk of loss arising due to policyholders” experiences (lapses and surrenders) being different

Policyholder decision risk
from expected

The Company also enters into reinsurance arrangement according to its Reinsurance Policy. Generally, 20% of the insurance policies are

reinsured as a part of the policy to Nepal reinsurance company and remaining portion of risk beyond retention limit is reinsured with

Hannover re. Although the Company has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct obligations to its policyholders and thus

a credit exposure exists with respect to ceded insurance, to the extent that any reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations assumed under

such reinsurance agreements.

a) The following tables show the concentration of life insurance contract liabilities by types of contracts.

As at 31st Ashad 2076

Particulars Gross Reinsurance Net
Endowment policy 568,233,167 (17,751,028) 550,482,139
Money back policy 179,820,792 (7,377,486) 172,443,306
Endowment and whole life policy 248,524,725 (10,579,704) 237,945,022
Term policy 9,196,469 (3,130,442) 6,066,027
Foreign employement term policy 11,812,896 - 11,812,896
Total 1,017,588,049 (38,838,659) 978,749,390
As at 32nd Ashad 2075

Particulars Gross Reinsurance Net
Endowment policy 163,690,188 (5,773,468) 157,916,720
Money back policy 46,671,508 (1,772,161) 44,899,347
Endowment and whole life policy 73,584,498 (2,740,425) 70,844,073
Term policy 1,071,759 (512,577) 559,182
Foreign employement term policy -
Total 285,017,953 (10,798,631) 274,219,322
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

5.1.2 Financial Risk

The primary source of financial risk to an insurer arises from its investment exposures and investment activities. Thus, the investment portfolios
maintain a prudent approach in its investment strategy and investment exposures to ensure that investment returns are optimised on a risk

adjusted basis and to ensure the Company operates within its defined risk appetite.
i Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to a risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. Thus, for an
insurance contract, credit risk includes the risk that an insurer incurs a financial loss because a reinsurer defaults on its obligations under the
reinsurance contract

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Group’s exposure to credit risk:

a) The Company does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single couterparty or any group of counterparties.
b) Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration of risk is avoided by entering into agreement with
more than one party. At each reporting date, management performs an assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the reinsurance

purchase strateev. ascertainine suitable allowance for impairment.
¢) The company deals with only creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of

financial loss from defaults. Loan against life insurance policies is adeqautely backed up by premium received.

. . Neither past due Past due Past Past due and .
Financial Assets . . . . Carrying amount
nor impaired less 90 Days 91 to 180 Days impaired
Fixed deposits 2,229,994,574 - - - 2,229,994,574
Corporate debentures 68,468,000 - - - 68,468,000
Corporate Ordinary Shares 75,200,000 - - - 75,200,000
Loans on life insurance Policies(Refer Note 1 below) 3,049,954 - - - 3,049,954
Loans to agents 11,890,577 - - - 11,890,577
Loans to employees 4,407,935 - - - 4,407,935
Receivables from Other Insurer 3,375,956 - - - 3,375,956
Deposits 2,166,140 - - - 2,166,140
Total 2,398,553,137 - - - 2,398,553,137

Note:
1) Loans against life insurance policies are given to the extent of 90% of surrender value. Hence, any outstanding prinicpal and interest receivable
upto 100% of surrender value is secured. After that foreclosure of the insurance policy is done.
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

i Liquidity Risk

The risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by

delivering cash or another financial asset.

Liquidity adequacy is a measure or assessment of the ability of a company to meet payment obligations in a full and timely manner within a
defined time horizon. It is a function of its sources of liquidity relative to its liquidity needs. Liquidity sources can be internal and external,
available immediately or within the defined time horizon, and includes all funds, assets and arrangements that allow an insurer to meet its
liquidity needs. Liquidity needs include all current and expected payment obligations within the defined time horizon.

The following table depicts the maturity profile of the investment portfolio on a discounted cash flow basis which is designed and managed
to meet the required level of liquidity as and when liquidity outgo arises taking into consideration the time horizon of the financial liabilities
of the business.

As at 31st Ashad 2076

Less than 1 Years 1to 3 Years More than 3 years Total

Assets
Financial Investments at FVTOCI - - 75,200,000 75,200,000
Financial Investments at amortized cost

219,994,574 177,500,000 1,900,968,000 2,298,462,574
Loans at amortized cost 19,348,467 19,348,467
Other Financial assets at amortized cost

3,375,956 - 2,166,140 5,542,096

Cash and cash equivalents 118,234,355 - - 118,234,355

341,604,885 177,500,000 1,997,682,607 2,516,787,492
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities 715,470,698 - - 715,470,698
Other Financial liabilities at amortized cost 158,439,431 - - 158,439,431
Other liabilities 11,169,754 - - 11,169,754
Provisions - - 10,795,791 10,795,791

885,079,884 - 10,795,791 895,875,674
Net Asset/(liabilities) (543,474,998) 177,500,000 1,986,886,816 1,620,911,818
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

iii Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign exchange rates (currency risk), market interest rates
(interest rate risk) and market prices (price risk).

a) Currency Risk

Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to experience volatility in the value of its assets, liabilities and
solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value between the currencies of its assets and
liabilities and its reporting currency. The Company does not maintain foreign currency denominated assets in its
investment portfolios and as such is not exposed to foreign exchange risk related to investments.

The Company has no significant concentration of currency risk. The amount with reinsurer is settled in Nepali Rupee.

b) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of

changes in market interest rates.

The major interest rate risk that the Company is exposed to is the discount rate for determining insurance liabilities.
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

5.2 Liability Adequacy Test

The company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether its recognised insurance liabilities are
adequate, using current estimates of future cash flows under its insurance contracts. If assessment shows that the
carrying amount of insurance contract liabilities is inadequate in the light of the estimated future cash flows, the
entire deficiency shall be recognised in profit or loss.

5.2.1 The accounting Policy for Liability testing including the frequency andnature of testing.

The valuation is carried out annually.

The nature of Liability Adequacy Test is an assessment of whether the carrying amount of an insurance liability
needs to be increased (or the carrying amount of related deferred acquisition costs or related intangible assets
decreased), based on a review of future cash flows. The purpose of LAT is to verify the adequacy of provisioning
for life insurance. The test consists of comparing the amount of provisions with the best estimate of provisions,
arrived at on the basis of the present value of the best estimate of the future expected contractual and other cash
flows. The calculation is performed for each separate contract while the results are aggregated on the level of
homogenous groups. The test is based on a unified methodology that determines, among others, the grouping of
policies into homogenous groups, the 6% discount rate as specified by regulator and the type of cash flows being
modelled. The portfolio balance is tested as at the last day of the business year.

The liabilities being within the available scheme-wise funds the liability adequacy requirement is not invoked.

5.2.2  The cash-flows considered.

The present value of all cash-flows of benefits, including riders, supplementary benefits, vested bonuses, future
bonuses and guarantees, under individual policy contract have been projected and the present value is arrived at
as on the date of valuation. Similarly, present value of cash-flows of future premiums and future expenses have
also been considered while arriving at the liability under each policy.
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

5.2.3 Valuation methods and assumptions
Valuation method is prescribed by the Regulator namely “Gross Premium Bonus Reserve” method has been used,
where cash-flows (outgo and income) under each contract are projected and discounted as at the date of

valuation.

The assumptions used are as under:

Mortality The products were all priced using 100% of the Nepal 2009 Mortality table

Interest Rate 6 % per annum

Commission Scales of commission / remuneration payable to agents / insurance intermediaries
as ver the Annexure 11 of the Insurance Regulation 2049

Inflation 4.6 % per annum for expenses other than Commission

Future Bonuses As disclosed in Note 5.12

The estimated future bonus rates are in line with the expected performance, the
previous profit allocation rates and the policyholders' reasonable expectations. In
the model, profit is allocated in an excess of the technical interests for with-profit
policies. The allocation is determined on the basis of the mathematical provisions
as at the end of the financial year.

5.2.4 The discounting policy.
The applied methodology determines that the discount rates used should reflect the yield of the local government
bonds denominated in the currency of the contract being modelled. The best estimate of provisions was
additionally determined on the basis of the yield of the company on overall investment portfolio of the company
which is used to verify the adequacy of the provisioning level as at 16th July 2019.

However, the discount rate of 6% per annum (as prescribed by Beema Samiti) is used to arrive at the present
value of all the cash-flow components under each of the insurance contracts. Further, the Company has earned a
gross return of around 12.6% during last year and hence the discount rate assumed appears to be quite prudent.

5.2.5 Aggregation practises.
Policies with similar types of benefits have been aggregated for liability adequacy testing. The aggregation of
policies has been done on following basis:
a) Endowment plan
b) Endowment cum Whole Life plan
¢) Money Back plan
The liabilities under each of the group are less than the available fund as at 16th July 2019 and hence the liability
adequacy requirements are duly met.
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

5.3 Capital Management

The focus of capital management is to maintain a strong capital base to support the business and business
growth, and to satisfy regulatory capital requirements at all times.

In view of this the Company has established the following objectives, policies and approach;

a) To maintain the required solvency level and provide security to policyholders.
To allocate capital efficiently and support the growth of the business by ensuring that returns on capital
employed meets the requirements of shareholders and policyholders.
To maintain financial strength to support new business growth and to satisfy the requirements of the
policyholders, regulators and stakeholders.

5.3.1 Regulatory minimum paid up capital
Life insurance companies were required by the Monetary Policy 2015/16 to attain a stipulated minimum paid
up capital of NPR 2 billion by mid-July 2018. As on the reporting date, the company's paid up capital is NPR
1.54 billion against the stipulated requirement.

5.3.2 Solvency Margin

The Company has Solvency Margin Ratio of 1.833 (Previous Year 1.077) computed in accordance with
Solvency Margin Directive, 2070.
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5.4

Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

Employee Benefit

Amount in NPR

Particulars

Year Ended 31st
Ashad 2076

Year Ended 32nd
Ashad 2075

Leave

Leave

Expenses Recognized In Profit or loss
Current service cost

Interest cost

Expected Return on Plan Assets

Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss

Past Service Cost

Expenses recognized in the Profit & Loss A/c

Expenses Recognized In Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on obligation
Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on plan assets

Change in Present Value Obligations
PV of Obligation at beginning of the year
Interest cost

Current Service Cost

Benefit paid

Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss

Liability at the end of the year

Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets

FV of Plan Asset at Beginning of the Year
Interest Income

Expected Return on Plan Assets
Contribution by Employer

Benefit paid

Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on Plan Assets

Fair Value of Plan Asset at End of the Year

Amount Recognized in SOFP

Present Value of Obligations at Year End
Fair Value of Plan Assets at Year End
Unfunded Status

Actuarial Assumptions

Discount rate

Salary escalation rate

Retirement age (remaining working lives in years)
Mortality

2,159,188
118,660

1,315,577

3,593,425

1,539,761
118,660
2,159,188

(113,031)
1,315,577

5,020,155

1,539,761

5,020,155

1,539,761

(5,020,155)

(1,539,761)

6.5%
8%
13.83

8%
8%
13.35

Sensitivity Analysis
Employee Leave Encashment

Particulars

Effects on DBO due to 1% increase in discount rate
Effects on DBO due to 1% decrease in discount rate
Effects on DBO due to 1% increase in salary escalation
Effects on DBO due to 1% decrease in salary escalation

Year Ended 31st
Ashad 2076

5,742,538
4,423,449
4,439,977
5,707,698

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumption constant. In

practice, this unlikely to occur and changes in some of the assumption is correlated. When calculating sensitivity of the

defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined benefit

obligation calculated with projected unit credit method at the end of reporting period) has been applied as when

calculating the defined benefit liability recognized in the the statement of financial positions.
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291'8€0°1TT T91'8€0°12T 788'6.0'588 788'6.0'588 [ejoL
98¢’ I¥ECL 98¢’ T¥ETL PeL'691T1 PeL'69TT1 Ty SORIIqeI] IO
LI¥'£48°CS LT¥'£LS°SS IEV'6E7'8ST L€V 6E7'8ST orv SOnI[IqeT] [eIoURUL]
S6L'6I1°EST G6L'611°EST 869'0LV'S1L 869°0L¥'S1L 67 SoUI[Iqe]] }o..U0d dUeInsu]
}S0D paspiowy
SOT[IqeI] [eDUrUL]
8L9°L€0°0VL'T 8L9°L€0°0VL'T LET'€SS'86€T LET'€SS'86€T §}9SSY [eueur] Jo Te10L
8L9°L€ST0L'T 8L9°L€ST0OL'T LET'ESE'€TET LET'ESE'€TET [ejoyqns
G19TLL1 GIGTLLT 960°CFS’S 960°C¥S’S ey S}osse [elueul] I9Wy30
9£8°¢LTT 948°¢LTT L9V'8TE'61 L9V'8TE'61 4% 1S05 paspIowre je Sueo|
£8S°167'869'1 £8S16%'869T VLS 766'67CC VLS 766'67CC (984 syisodap paxry
- - 000'89%'89 000'89%'89 €Y sarnjuaqeap ajerodio)
}S0D PIsSIOWY - JUSWI}SIAU] [EIDURUL]
000°00S°LE 00000S°LE 000°002’SL 000°002’SL [ejoyqns
- - - - v (pa30nD) spuny ey
000°005°2€ 000°005°£€ 000°002°SZ 000°00C°GZ €Y sannby pajonbun
- - - - ok 4 sanmby pajon)
IDOLAJ-usuw}saAu] [epueUl]

anyea Irej anfeA Suidire) anyea IreJ aneA Surdire)
60T PeYSY PUZE 1e Sy 90T PEYSYV ISIE 1€ SV S9JON S)9sSe [edURUIL]
SJUdWINISUI [EIDUBUL JO dN[RA IIE]
AdN Ut junouty SJUSWINIISU] [eDURUL]

(610T “AI( YI9T) 9207 PYSY ISIE PIapuo 1ea4 Y} 104
SjuLuWIde}g [eURUL] Y} 0} SOJON

pajmury Aueduwro) asueinsuy 3517 oA

1'e’s

Qe

[



5.5.2

Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

Fair Value Hierarchy

Assets and liabilities carried at fair value or for which fair values are disclosed have been classified into three
levels according to the observability of the significant inputs used to determine the fair values. Changes in the
observability of significant valuation inputs during the reporting period may result in a transfer of assets and
liabilities within the fair value hierarchy. The company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value
hierarchy when there is a significant change in either its principal market or the level of observability of the

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for
identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all
significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where at least one input, which could have a significant effect on the instrument’s

valuation, is not based on observable market data.

Financial instruments Held

at Fair value thorugh OCI

Fa.lr value As at As at
Hierarchy 31st Ashad 2076 | 32nd Ashad 2075
(Level)
Financial assets
Quoted Equities 1 - -
Unquoted Equities 3 75,200,000 37,500,000
Mutual Fund-Quoted 1 - -
Total 75,200,000 37,500,000
Financial Instruments held at amortised cost
Financial assets
Corporate debentures 3 68,468,000 -
Fixed deposits 1 2,229,994,574 1,698,491,587
Loans at amortised cost 1 19,348,467 2,273,576
Other Financial assets 3 5,542,096 1,772,515
Total 2,323,353,137 1,702,537,678
Financial liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities 3 715,470,698 153,119,395
Financial Liabilities 3 158,439,431 55,577,411
Other Financial liabilities 3 11,169,754 12,341,356
Total 885,079,884 221,038,162
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

5.6  Earnings per share (EPS)
The Company measures earning per share on the basis of the earning attributable to the equity shareholders for the

period. The number of shares is taken as the weighted average number of shares for the relevant period as required
by NAS 33 Earnings per Share.

As at As at
Particulars Units 31st Ashad 32nd Ashad
2076 2075
Profit attributable to equity shareholders NRs 182,031,207 120,823,316
Weight f f equity sh. i
eig e?d aver’flge o r.1umber of equity shares used in Nos. 15,400,000 15,400,000
computing basic earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per equity share of Rs. 100 each Rs. 12 8

There is no covertible and other option, future instruments which would dilute the current earnings of equity holders.
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)
5.8 Related Parties

The Company identifies the following as the related parties under the requirements of NAS 24.

Name Relationship Remarks
1. Nanda Kishor Sharma Chairman
2. Akash Golcha Director
3. Jayanta Kumar Agrawal Director
4. Sharmila Maharjan Director
5. Prakash Bikram Khatri Chief Executive Officer
6. Pharsuram Marasini Key Management Personnel
7. Rajiv Gurbacharya Key Management Personnel
8. Umesh Prasad Mainali Key Management Personnel

5.9.1 Board Member Allowances and Facilities

The Board of Directors have been paid meeting fees of NPR 227,000 during the fiscal year. Other Committee members were paid meeting fees of NRS.336,000

5.9.2 Transactions with Related Parties

Compensation to Key Managerial Person

Short Term Other L Share Based
S. No. | Particular Employee Post Term Benefits Long-term T:emr::g:smn Payment
Benefits Benefits (if any)
P.F Gratuity Leave
1 Prakash Bikram Khatri 4,830,400 253,440 377,982 334,400 - - -
2 Pharshu Ram Marasini 2,133,000 105,300 155,504 136,013 - - -
3 Rajiv Gurbacharya 1,714,800 78,840 113,648 93,075 - - -
4 Umesh Prasad Mainali 1,517,400 69,660 101,671 95,783 - - -
Total 10,195,600 507,240 748,805 659,270 - - -

Other than above, fuel and mobile phone expenses have been reimbused by the company.
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

5.10 Contingent liabilities and commitments ( to the extent not provided for)

i) The Company did not have any claim other than related to Insurance Policy
ii) The Company does not have any capital commitment
iii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any

material foreseeable losses.

5.11 The company has self assessed and filed the income tax return till FY 2074/75.

5.12 Bonus Rate to Insurance Policy Holders
Declared and Interim Bonus Rate to policy holder for one thousand Sum Assured per annum is as under:

per year per thousand

. . . Endowent and Whole
S.N Tenure of Policy Endowment policy Money Back Policy . .
Life Policy

1 5-9 years 43 43
2 10- 14 years 45 43 45
3 15- 19 years 50 45 50
4 20-24 years 55 50 55
5 25 years & above 75 75

5.13 The company has charged ineterst on late premium payment and loans against insurance policies as per following:

S.N Particulars Interest Rate Amount Received
Current Year Previous Year
1 Late Premium Payment 10% 487,835 1,529
5 Loans against‘ . 10% 39,447 )
Insurance policies

5.14 The company has the following outstanding balance with Reinsurer:

S.N Particulars Amount
1 Payable to Nepal Reinsurance Company Limited 2,251,720
2 Payable to Hannover Rueck se Reinsurance 15,680,773
Total Payable 17,932,493
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

Summary of NFRS Adjustments

6.1 Reconciliation of total equity Amount in NPR
Year Ended 31st Year Ended 32nd
Ashad 2076 Ashad 2075
Total equity (shareholders’ funds) under previous GAAP 1,860,137,675 1,673,246,145
NFRS Adjustments:
Reversal of depreciation 15,577 15,577
Reversal of provision of Leave encashment 42,184
Adjusted Deferred Tax 3,407,035 920,423
Additional provision for Leave (789,410)
Additional provision for Rent (10,254,795) (3,739,455)
Total adjustment to equity (7,621,593) (2,761,270)
Total Equity under NFRS 1,852,516,082 1,670,484,876
6.2 Reconciliation of profit Amount in NPR
Year Ended 31st Year Ended 32nd
Ashad 2076 Ashad 2075
Profit as per previous GAAP 186,891,530 123,596,267
Adjustments under NFRS
Reversal of provision of investment booked under GAAP
Defined benefit obligation of employees
Additional provision for leave encashment (831,594) 42,184
Deferred tax 2,486,612 924,318
Rent Expenses (6,515,341) (3,739,455)
Staff Expenses (62,669)
Agent Expenses (684,858)
Interest Income From Staff Loan 62,669
Interest Income From Agent Loan 684,858
Depreciation
Gain on sale of investment routed through equity
Total Adjustment to profit or loss (4,860,323) (2,772,953)
Profit or loss under NFRS 182,031,207 120,823,316
Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income under NFRS 182,031,207 120,823,316

TC




Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

6.3 Reconciliation of Statement of Financial Positions reported at 31st Ashad 2076 due to adoptation of NFRS

Amount in NPR
. Re-classified Adjustments NFRS
Particulars GAAP

Assets
Property, plant and equipment 58,403,933 15,576 58,419,509
Intangible assets 3,766,091 3,766,091
Financial Investments 2,373,662,574 2,373,662,574
Loans at amortized cost 26,836,933 (7,488,466) 19,348,467
Other Financial assets at amortized cost 5,542,096 5,542,096
Deferred tax asset 79,199,512 3,407,035 82,606,547
Reinsurance Assets 1,735,258
Other assets 7,438,826 6,338,966 13,777,792
Current tax assets (net) 71,299,066 71,299,066
Cash and cash equivalents 118,234,355 118,234,355
Total Assets 2,744,383,387 2,748,391,756
EQUITY
Share capital 1,540,000,000 1,540,000,000
Other reserves 79,199,513 3,464,796 82,664,308
Catastrophe reserve 32,013,768 32,013,768
Retained earnings 208,924,396 (11,086,389) 197,838,007
Total equity 1,860,137,676 1,852,516,082
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities 713,735,440 1,735,258 715,470,698
Financial Liabilities 148,184,637 10,254,795 158,439,431
Other liabilities 11,169,754 11,169,754
Provisions 11,155,880 (360,090) 10,795,791
Total liabilities 884,245,711 895,875,674
Total liabilities and equity 2,744,383,387 2,748,391,756
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

6.4 Reconciliation of Profit and Loss

Reconciliation of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 due to adoption of NFRS

Amount in NPR

Particulars GAAP Adjustments NEFRS
Gross earned premium 1,017,588,049 1,017,588,049
Outward reinsurance (38,838,659) (38,838,659)
Net insurance premium revenue 978,749,390 978,749,390
Other incomes
Income from investments 229,545,496 229,545,496
Other income 9,997,841 747,528 10,745,368
Total income 1,218,292,726 1,219,040,254
Gross claims and benefits paid 5,768,707 5,768,707
Claims ceded to reinsurers (4,203,199) (4,203,199)
Changes in net insurance liability 560,616,044 560,616,045
Net insurance benefits and claims 562,181,553 562,181,553
Agent Expenses 298,599,489 684,858 299,284,348
Regulatory Service fee 9,861,928 9,861,928
Employees benefit expenses 132,100,752 894,264 132,995,015
Impairment losses on financial assets 1,149,500 1,149,500
Depreciation & Amortization 9,286,549 9,286,549
Other operating expenses 97,238,229 6,515,341 103,753,569
Other expenses 548,236,447 556,330,910
Total expenses 1,110,418,000 1,118,512,463
Profit before income tax 107,874,726 100,527,791
Tax expense: (79,016,804) (2,486,612) (81,503,416)
- Provision for income tax
- Deferred tax (income)/expense
Profit for the year 186,891,530 182,031,207
Other comprehensive income
Fair Value Reserve - -
Revalution Surplus - -
Actuarial Gain/ (Loss) - -
Deferred Tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 186,891,530 182,031,207
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Jyoti Life Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31st Ashad 2076 (16th July, 2019)

6.5 Reconciliation of Statement Cash Flow for the year ended 16 July 2019

Amount in NPR
For the Year Ended 16 July 2019
Effect of
Particulars Previous GAAP transition to Amount as per
NFRS NERS

Assets
Net Cash Flows from operating activities 511,056,608 (7,939,476) 503,117,132
Net Cash Flows from investing activities (446,111,651) 3,550,596 (442,561,055)
Net Cash Flows from financing activities (3,416,728) - (3,416,728)
Net increase/ (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalent 61,528,229 (4,388,880) 57,139,349
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 53,686,149 7,408,856 61,095,005
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the period 115,214,378 3,019,976 118,234,355

Notes on Cash Flow Statement

There is no any cash inflow due to NFRS. However, major adjustments are observed mainly due to reclassification of call

deposits from investment in Local GAAP to cash and cash equivalent in NFRS financials. Also, Interest Income and other

realized gain on disposal of assets is Classified as operating Income in case of NFRS causing the difference in classification.

_________________________________________________________________________________________________NJ4
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BRANCH CONTACT DETAILS:

PROVINCE 1
Biratnagar - Regional Office Contact Office Contact
Biratnagar - Branch 9801238516 021524655
Inaruwa - Sub Branch 9801238557
Birtamode - Branch 9801238420 023541581
Bhadrapur - Sub Branch 9801238480 023455575
Damak - Branch 9801238430 023582804
Dharan - Branch 9801238517 025530666
Dhankuta - Branch 9801238429 026520548
Terhathum - Sub Branch 9801902587
Khandbari - Sub Branch 9801902585
Bhojpur - Sub Branch 9801902659
llam - Branch 9801238423 027521728
Phidim - Branch 9801238558
Teplejung - Sub Branch 9801905953
Itahari - Branch 9801238424 025584415
Biratchowk - Sub Branch 9801238581
Okhaldhunga - Branch 9801238553
Solu - Sub Branch 9801238559
Diktel - Sub Branch 9801238336
PROVINCE 2
Janakpur - Regional Office Contact Office Contact
Birgunj - Branch 9801238408 051534495
Kalaiya - Sub Branch 9801238451 053551255
JitpurB - Sub Branch 9801238449 053412284
Pokhariya - Sub Branch 9801238450 051560142
Chapur - Branch 9801238413 055540709
Gaur - Sub Branch 9801238485 055521192
Nijgad - Sub Branch 9801238445 053540497
Gaighat - Branch 9801238478 035420587
Janakpur - Branch 9801238419 041528425
Lalbandi - Sub Branch 9801238484 046501569
Jaleshwor - Sub Branch 9801238486
Bardibas - Sub Branch 9801238479
Lahan - Branch 9801238440 033560822
Mirchaiya - Sub Branch 9801238530
Rajbiraj - Branch 9801238295
Sindhuli - Branch 9801238416 047521213




PROVINCE 3

Kathmandu - Regional Office Contact Office Contact

Banepa - Branch 9801238422 011660122
Chautara - Sub Branch 9801905946
Khandichaur - Sub Branch 9802303457
Panauti - Sub Branch 9802303458
Charikot - Sub Branch 9801238495 049421501
Manthali - Sub Branch 9801238556 048540686
Bhaktapur - Branch 9801238406 016620445
Gongabu - Branch 9801238415 014385751
Battar - Sub Branch 9801238292 010560132
Gyaneshwor - Branch 9801238404 014445941
Jorpati - Branch 9801238309 014911434
Maharajgunj - Branch 9801238582 014017535
Dhading - Branch 9801238296
Koteshwor - Branch 9801904748 014106895
Newroad - Branch 9801904741 014264995
Pulchowk - Branch 9801238489 015009005
Kritipur - Sub Branch 9801238414
Gwarko - Sub Branch 9802311437
Harisiddhi - Sub Branch 9802303462
Chapagaun - Sub Branch 9802303459
Bhaisepati - Sub Branch 9801904749
Rabibhawan - Branch 9801905547 014274624
Sorakhutte - Branch 9801238334 014387508
Chababhil - Branch 9801238588 014480174
Anamnagar - Branch 9801904742 015705074
Sitapaila - Branch 9801905945
PROVINCE 4
Pokhara - Regional Office Contact Office Contact
Baglung - Branch 9801238425 068521306
Kushma - Sub Branch 9801904743 067420239
Beni - Sub Branch 9802303456 069522004
Damauli - Branch 9801238432 065562731
Besisahar - Sub Branch 9801238529 066520496
Gorkha - Sub Branch 9801238294
Khairenitar - Sub Branch 9802303488
Pokhara - Branch 9801238495 061550201
Lekhnath - Sub Branch 9801905259
Waling - Branch 9801238487 063440747




PROVINCE 5
Butwal - Regional Office Contact Office Contact
Bhairahawa - Branch 9801238291 071525033
Butwal - Branch 9801238528 071547786
Bardaghat - Sub Branch 9801238444 078580496
Jeetpur - Sub Branch 9801238446 076550147
Manigram - Sub Branch 9801238515 071562392
Murgiya - Sub Branch 9801238555 071440138
Taulihawa - Sub Branch 9801238304 076560941
Parasi - Sub Branch 9801238554 078520272
Arghakhanchi - Branch 9801238526 077420952
Chitwan - Branch 9801238418 056570123
Tandi - Sub Branch 9801238299 056562109
Kawasoti - Sub Branch 9801905973
Gulmi - Branch 9801238552 079520897
Hetauda - Branch 9801238442 057524102
Palpa - Branch 9801238520 075522812
Rampur - Sub Branch 9801238293 075400502
PROVINCE 6
Ghorahi - Regional Office Contact Office Contact
Ghorahi - Branch 9801238443 082563925
Rukum Purba - Sub Branch 9801904740
Lamahi - Sub Branch 9801238523 082540958
Rolpa - Sub Branch 9801238499 086440380
Salyan - Sub Branch 9801238524 088400009
Rukum - Sub Branch 9801238335
Pyuthan - Sub Branch 9801902658
Tulsipur - Branch 9801238498 082523434
Nepalgunj - Branch 9801238488 081550286
Gulariya - Sub Branch 9801238448 084420692
Rajapur - Sub Branch 9801238483
Kohalpur - Sub Branch 9801238447 081541195
Humla - Sub Branch 9802303487 9848309500
Surkhet - Branch 9801902581 083522547
Jajarkot - Sub Branch 9801904867
Kalikot - Sub Branch
Jumla - Sub Branch 9801238297 087520260
Dailekh - Sub Branch 9801238531 089410249
PROVINCE 7
Dhangadhi - Regional Office Contact Office Contact
Dadeldhura - Branch 9801238519 096420971
Bajhang - Sub Branch 9801902589 092421235
Baitadi - Sub Branch 9801902584 095520521
Darchula - Sub Branch 9801904744 093420490
Dhangadi - Branch 9801238521 091417253
Tikapur - Sub Branch 9801238481 091560629
Sukhad - Sub Branch 9801238417 091403157
Punarbas - Sub Branch 9801238482 099420020
Attariya - Sub Branch 9802303486
Doti - Branch 9801902582 094412053
Bajura - Sub Branch 9801902583 097541329
Achham - Sub Branch 9801902586 097620132
Mahendranagar - Branch 9801238494 099523149
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Shanta Plaza, Gyaneshwor,
Kathmandu, Nepal | P.O Box 19433
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